From: Wadiak, Kathleen

To: Friend, Ashley C; wmccloy

Cc: FGC: NHFG review; Winters, Melissa; Ford, Michelle T; Mauck, Ridgely

Subject: NHFG Review NHB22-2488 NHB22-2489 P106 Structure Replacement Goffstown Manchester
Date: Monday, September 26, 2022 9:24:12 AM

Attachments: P106 NHB NHFG BMPs 8-22-22.docx

racer flver 2020.pdf
SEEKING REPORTS OF RARE TURTLES Wd sp Embl Aug2022.pdf

Ashley,

NHFG has completed its review of the materials submitted by William McCloy of Normandeau
Associates 8/22/22 for NHB22-2488 and NHB22-2489. The proposed project is for sixteen structure
replacements and overhead optical ground wire work on the P106 transmission line in Manchester
and Goffstown.

Permit applications associated with this review:
e NHDES Alteration of Terrain

NHFG understands that this project is proposed to begin in October 2022 and continue for 6
months. If the timing of this project changes or work is proposed to continue into turtle nesting

season (May 15" June 30th), notify NHFG.
Notify NHFG of any changes in work areas or access that occur in response to NHB plant surveys.
Recommended BMPs shall apply to all work areas unless otherwise specified by NHFG.

Based on the NHB datacheck results letter and the information provided in the submission, we
request the following recommended permit conditions be incorporated into the sheet plans as
written below (updated highlighted text as applicable) and provided to NHDES and cc NHFG for
final review.

New Hampshire Fish and Game AoT Permit Conditions in accordance with Env-Wqg 1504.18 — Wildlife
Protection Notes:

e BMPs in the document titled “P106_NHB_ NHFG_BMPs_8-22-22" submitted to NHFG 9/23/22
(attached) shall be adhered to at all times during this project.

e Blanding’s turtle (state endangered), spotted turtle (state threatened), and Northern black
racer (state threatened) occur within the vicinity of the project area. All operators and
personnel working on or entering the site shall be made aware of the potential presence of
these species and shall be provided flyers that help to identify these species, along with NHFG
contact information. See Plan Sheet xxxxxx. Include attached flyers to plan sheet set.

e Observations of Northern black racers in the months of April-May and September-October
may indicate the potential for a den site on or near the project site. Observations of this
species during this timeframe shall be reported immediately to the New Hampshire Fish and
Game Department Nongame and Endangered Wildlife Environmental Review Program. Please
contact Melissa Winters (603-479-1129) or Brendan Clifford (603-944-0885). Observations of
this species outside of this timeframe can follow general reporting guidance. Please include



mailto:Kathleen.P.Wadiak@wildlife.nh.gov
mailto:ashley.friend@eversource.com
mailto:wmccloy@normandeau.com
mailto:NHFGreview@wildlife.nh.gov
mailto:Melissa.J.Winters@wildlife.nh.gov
mailto:michelle.ford@eversource.com
mailto:Addison.R.Mauck@des.nh.gov

[image: ]





DATE		September 22, 2022



TO: 	Kathleen Wadiak, NHF&G	
NH Fish & Game Department

		NHFGreview@wildlife.nh.gov



FROM: 		Ashley Friend, Specialist - Licensing & Permitting

		Eversource Energy



CC:		Melissa Winters, NHF&G

		Michelle Ford, Eversource

		William McCloy, Normandeau Associates



SUBJECT: 	NH F&G and NHB Consultation Request
		NHB ID: NHB22-2488 & NHB22-2489

Eversource P106 Transmission Line Structure Replacement Project





The following information is being provided on behalf of Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Services Company (herein Eversource) in accordance with “Part Fis 1004.03(c) Information Required for Consultation.” 

On September 22, 2022, Kat Wadiak provided some initial feedback, requesting revisions to the BMPs for wildlife species, including revised language and including these BMPs in a separate document.  See below.



Vertebrate Species:

a) Blanding's turtle (Emydoidea blandingii) – State Endangered & Spotted Turtle (Clemmys guttata) – State Threatened

· Prior to the start of construction, a qualified biologist shall educate site operators who will be informed of the potential presence of this species and shall be provided with the NH Fish and Game listed species flyer for Blanding’s turtle. The NHFG flyers contain information to identify this species and provide NHFG contact information.

· Blanding’s and spotted turtles may be encountered in both upland and wetland habitats within the project work area. Limited wetland habitat is present within the ROW, but BMPs should apply to all areas. Known habitat (only one wetland present within the ROW; completely avoided) is limited within the ROW/Project Area. Minimize work in known habitat during the active season (April 1 -– October 15) to the greatest extent practicable. Work is proposed only at the end of and mostly outside the active season.

· If work must occur during the active season (April 1 – October 15), contractors working within the ROW will be trained by a qualified biologist on the identification and response protocols for Blanding’s and spotted turtles. A Certified Wildlife Biologist will provide the training (resume to be provided).

· During Inactive Period (Approximately October 16 - March 31), all contractors working within known habitat will be trained by a qualified biologist on the identification and response protocols for Blanding’s and spotted turtles.

· Searches and sweeps shall be conducted immediately before the start of construction and movement of equipment in order to minimize the chance of animals entering an area between the sweep and work. Prior to the start of construction within known habitat, trained contractors will search the work area. 

· In the event a threatened or endangered species is observed on the project site during the term of the permit, the species shall not be disturbed, handled, or harmed in any way prior to consultation with NHFG and implementation of corrective actions recommended by NHFG.

· Site operators shall be allowed to relocate wildlife encountered if discovered within the active work zone and if in direct harm from project activities. Wildlife shall be relocated in close proximity to the capture location but outside of the work zone and in the direction the individual was heading. NHFG shall be contacted immediately if this action occurs.

· If a Blanding’s or spotted turtle is discovered, the animal shall be photographed and either relocated (in the direction of travel) or allowed to migrate on its own outside the work area. Tthe observing individual will then immediately contact the project Environmental Licensing & Permitting specialist from Eversource who will contact NH F&G for further information, as follows:

i. Josh Megyesy 978-578-0802; or

ii. Melissa Winters 603-479-1129.

iii. c) If NHF&G staff are unable to be reached, contact the Wildlife Administrator at 603- 271-2461.

· Immediately Pprior to daily construction activities, timber matting shall be reviewed for snakes and turtles. An environmental addendum shall be added to the contractor’s daily tailboards to include guidance on protocols for snakes and provide identification for turtles and snakes.

· At the conclusion of the project, a summary report of any rare species observations shall be provided to the NHFG Nongame Program.

b) Northern black racer (Coluber constrictor constrictor) – State Threatened

· Site operators shall be informed of the potential presence of this species and shall be provided with the NH Fish and Game listed species flyer for northern black racer. The NHFG flyers contain information to identify this species and provide NHFG contact information. 

· Minimize work in known habitat during the active season (April 1 - October 31) to the greatest extent practicable. 

· Disturbance for winter work areas should be minimized to the extent possible in order to limit impacts to hibernating snakes. Hibernacula can be impacted by work occurring in the inactive season. A single hibernaculum can host many snakes, so damage to one can result in significant impacts to the population. Northern black racers are known to hibernate directly adjacent to utility structures, so impacts must be considered even in the inactive season.

· If work must occur during the active season, contractors working within the ROW will be trained by a qualified biologist on the identification and response protocols for northern black racers. A Certified Wildlife Biologist will provide the training (resume to be provided).

· Searches and sweeps shall be conducted immediately before the start of construction and movement of equipment in order to minimize the chance of animals entering an area between the sweep and work. 

· In the event a threatened or endangered species is observed on the project site during the term of the permit, the species shall not be disturbed, handled, or harmed in any way prior to consultation with NHFG and implementation of corrective actions recommended by NHFG.

· Site operators shall be allowed to relocate wildlife encountered if discovered within the active work zone and if in direct harm from project activities. Wildlife shall be relocated in close proximity to the capture location but outside of the work zone and in the direction the individual was heading. NHFG shall be contacted immediately if this action occurs.

· If a northern black racer is discovered, the animal shall be photographed and the observing individual will then immediately contact the project Environmental Licensing & Permitting specialist from Eversource who will contact NH F&G for further information, as follows:

· Prior to the start of construction within known habitat, trained contractors will search the work area. If a northern black racer is discovered, the snake shall be photographed and either relocated (typically in the direction of travel) or allowed to migrate on its own outside the work area. The observing contractor will then immediately contact the project Environmental Licensing & Permitting specialist from Eversource who will contact NH F&G as follows:

i. Brendan Clifford 603-944-0885; or

ii. Melissa Winters 603-479-1129.

iii. c) If NHF&G staff are unable to be reached, contact the Wildlife Administrator at 603- 271-2461.

· Immediately Pprior to daily construction activities, timber matting shall be reviewed for snakes and turtles. An environmental addendum shall be added to the contractor’s daily tailboards to include guidance on protocols for snakes and provide identification for turtles and snakes.

· Erosion control matting (including wattles), if utilized, shall consist of jute matting. In accordance with the NH Department of Natural & Cultural Resources, March 2019 Best Management Practices [BMP] Utility Maintenance in and Adjacent to Wetlands and Waterbodies Manual and Eversource’s BMP Manual for Sediment and Erosion Control, all photodegradable and welded plastic mesh shall be prohibited on this project and only E&S controls made of biodegradable, natural materials shall be utilized in order to prevent mortality to wildlife.

· Observations of northern black racers in the months of April-May and September-October may indicate the potential for a den site on or near the project site. Observations of this species during this timeframe shall be reported immediately to the New Hampshire Fish and Game Department Nongame and Endangered Wildlife Environmental Review Program via the contacts and procedures (including photographs if possible) above. Observations of this species outside of this timeframe can follow general reporting guidance.

· At the conclusion of the project, a summary report of any rare species observations shall be provided to the NHFG Nongame Program.
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Northern Black Racer

(New Hampshire state threatened species)

* Solid black with a white throat
and chin

* Slender with glossy scales, 3-6 ft.
long

1+ Hatchlings are very small and

patterned

Immediately report sightings to NH Fish and Game
Melissa Doperalski (603-479-1129) or
Brendan Clifford (603-944-0885)

Please report promptly, noting specific location and date
Photographs strongly encouraged







PLEASE REPORT RARE TURTLES

The NH Fish & Game Department is requesting observations of three turtle species that could

be encountered onsite.
Report sightings immediately to NHFG Wildlife Division at 603-271-2461 (M-F 8-4) or to NHFG Wildlife Biologist Melissa Winters 603-479-1129 (cell) anytime.

Please report promptly, noting specific location and date — Photographs strongly encouraged

Blanding’s turtle (state endangered)

Large, dark/black domed shell with
lighter speckles

Distinct yellow throat/chin

Aquatic but often moves on land

Wood turtle (special concern)

* Sculpted, pyramidal brownish
shell

* Orange around neck and limbs

* River/stream turtle spending
many months on land

Spotted turtle (state threatened)

* Small, mostly aquatic with black
or dark brown with yellow spots.

* Fairly flat shell compared to
Blanding’s turtle









photograph with text if feasible.
Turtles and snakes may be attracted to disturbed ground during nesting season. Turtle
nesting season occurs approximately May 15th — June 30th. Nesting areas may include work
pads and access roads that are not hard pack gravel and other sandy/gravel work areas. All
turtle species nests and Northern black racer nests are protected by NH laws. Be aware of
the potential to encounter nesting wildlife in these areas.
If a turtle or snake nest is observed or suspected, or a turtle is exhibiting nesting behaviors,
operators shall contact Melissa Winters (603-479-1129) or Josh Megyesy (978-578-0802) at
NHFG immediately for further consultation. Turtle nests or turtles exhibiting nesting
behavior shall not be disturbed.
Sweeps of work areas and access routes shall be conducted immediately prior to start of work
and equipment movement in order to minimize the potential of animals entering a work area
between the sweep and activity.
All work activities shall be restricted to the defined roads, construction areas, and staging
areas, with no equipment or materials staged or stored outside of the defined areas as shown

on plan sheets.
Minimize work pad areas, including matting, to the greatest extent possible.

e All manufactured erosion and sediment control products, with the exception of turf

reinforcement mats, utilized for, but not limited to, slope protection, runoff diversion, slope
interruption, perimeter control, inlet protection, check dams, and sediment traps shall not
contain plastic, or multifilament or monofilament polypropylene netting or mesh with an
opening size of greater than 1/8 inches;

All observations of threatened or endangered species on the project site shall be reported
immediately to the NHFG nongame and endangered wildlife environmental review program
by phone at 603-271-2461 and by email at NHEGreview@wildlife.nh.gov, with the email
subject line containing the NHB DataCheck tool results letter assigned number, the project
name, and the term Wildlife Species Observation;

Photographs of the observed species and nearby elements of habitat or areas of land
disturbance shall be provided to NHFG in digital format at the above email address for
verification, as feasible;

In the event a threatened or endangered species is observed on the project site during the
term of the permit, the species shall not be disturbed, handled, or harmed in any way prior to
consultation with NHFG and implementation of corrective actions recommended by NHFG.

o Site operators shall be allowed to relocate wildlife encountered if discovered within the
active work zone and if in direct harm from project activities. Wildlife shall be relocated
in close proximity to the capture location but outside of the work zone and in the
direction the individual was heading. NHFG shall be contacted immediately if this action
occurs.

The NHFG, including its employees and authorized agents, shall have access to the property
during the term of the permit.

Additional Recommendations:

Wood turtles (state species of special concern) have the potential to occur within the
vicinity of the project area. Site operators should be informed of the potential presence of
these species and should be provided flyers that help to identity these species along with
NHFG contact information should they be encountered during project activities. See Plan
Sheet xxxxxx. Include attached flyer.

NHFG has completed our review of materials submitted for consultation under FIS 1004. No further
coordination with NHFG is requested, and the final recommendations have been transmitted to the
applicable permitting agency. Questions or concerns on NHFG recommendations must follow FIS
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1004.12. Note that NHFG recommendations may be withdrawn pursuant to FIS 1004.13.
Let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you,
Kat

Kat Wadiak

Wildlife Biologist

Nongame & Endangered Wildlife Program
NH Fish and Game

11 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-3017

As of February 3, 2022, New Hampshire Fish and Game requirements for environmental review
consultation have changed. To review the new rules, please go to
https://www.wildlife.state.nh.us/wildlife/environmental-review.html. All requests for consultation
and submittals should be sent via email to NHFGreview@wildlife.nh.gov or can be sent by mail. The
NHB datacheck results letter number needs to be included in the email subject line.

The requirements for consultation (Fis 1004) shall not apply to the following: statutory permit by
notification, permit by rule, permit by notification, routine roadway registration, docking structure
registration, or conditional authorization by rule. Review requests for these projects can be sent
directly to kim.tuttle@wildlife.nh.gov.
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